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Justice Lang 
PEOPLE. &C., v. WILLIAM -

THONY MAYNARD-The defenda t, 
Willi~ Maynard, was charged w th 
the cr}me of murder in the first e­
gree. 1'he first trial of the case e­
sulted in the jury being unable to 
agree. • The second trial was abor ed 
in its early stages upon a declarat on 
of a mistrial. The third trial resulted 
in his conviction of the crime of mAn­
slaugtiter in the first degree. The cbn­
viction wa.s affirmed by the Appellate 
Divisi9n in a three-to-two decision 
with a strong dissenting opinion. fhe 
case is presently pending before Jthe 
CourtJ of Appeals. i 

Th~ defendant has previously e 
a series.of postconviction motions be­
fore tfte, which were all denied. he 
insta.qt motions seek to set aside1the 
judgment of conviction on the grounds 
of nt!wly discovered evidence (CPL 
.11~. ~40.10 Lgl) and that the ~­
vlct1on was had in violation of de-' 
fen,dant's constitutional rights underl 
Brady v. Maryland (373 U. S. 83; t:PLl 
sec. 440.10 lh]). • 

The motions revolve around a wit- , 
ness for the prosecution, Michael I 
Febles. Febles was one of three eye­
witnesses to the crime. He testified 
that he saw the defendant and a 
white companion involved in an argu­
ment on West Third Street off Sixth 
Avenue with a sailor, Robert Crist, 
in which the deceased intervened. 
Shortly thereafter, while in a taxlqab 
on Sixth Avenue and West Foutth 
street, he heard a "blast" and fuw 
the defendant and his companion un 
away. He gave chase and obsetrve a 
tan bag thrown under a car. The t>ag 
was later recovered and was evidence 
on trial in connection with the testi­
mony of one Howard Fox, a !cab 

( driver, who testified he had driven 

I

. the defendant and a white comparlion, 
who carried a tan bag, to the gerleral 
area of the crime some hours ~ore. 

1 Febles identified the - defendant as. 
"sort of tall,'' "not very heavily built,". 

I dark skinned with "a slender face'i 
and "high cheekbones," wearln!I: an, 
"Afro" haircut and about ''19-2(1,: 
years old." ~bles later identi:fle!l tg 
• defendant by means of pihotograp 
and, a seemingly accidental fa{:e-to­
face encounter in the courtholfe. } 

The other two eyewitnesses were 
'Robert Crist and Dennis !orris. 
• Crist, who was with the dece ed at 
the time of the shooting, id t!fied 
the defendant as about 18-22 years 
old and testified he also r1·ewed 
photographs of him. There w s sub­
stantial evidence of the fac • Crist 
was in a state of intoxication at the 
time of the murd"ell'. Morris witnessed 
the initial argument and also the 
shooting. He described the defendant 
as about 5'8" -6' tall, medium com­
plexion, well built, with an Afro type 
haircut, 18-22 years old, and resem­
bling Martin Luther King. 

The instant motions initially arooe 
• from recent information imparted to 

this court by defendant's counsel that 
sometime about 1954 Febles was h~-

....._ plta.li;ed at Rockland State Hospftal 
for 'A ychiatric disorders. A hearing 
was dered to det,ermlne if the prq,se­
cutimj was aware of these facts. 1 As 
a resl),lt of this COl\lrt's order to pro­
vide the defendant with Febles' crimi­
nal fecord (yellow sheet), it f.vas 
further discovered that on Jan. 10, 
1966,: some fifteen months prior to 

L the li'.omicide, F-ebles was a.rresteq on 
J a disbrderly conduct charge (former 
• Pena1 Law sec. 722 [3]), to :Wit: 
) Thation or about Jan. 9, 1966,1.and 

subsequent thereto, at 16 West 10th I Street, New York City, Febles did 
f "ring1 the deponent's doorbell having 
1 no business thereat, did knock 

1
iupon 

I and lhok through the deponent's• win­
dow, Tat which time the defefdant 

• stateJ to deponent "I want to come 
in, to fuck you, I want to sue you, 
put· ~Y mouth in your vagin . I'l 
take I your clothes all off an fuck1 
you.'1 "Th-e defendant then fled • *"• 

.. -

m- arrest lfild ·1nc1aen"t~ ~ 
placi in the same police pr~.rinct. 
as IDle homicide. The court req,<>rdsl 
of that a1Test indicated that upont 
Febles' conviction by way Of a lJlea! 
of guilty, the District Attorney; re­
late!l to the court that the cpm-, 
plaipant had Infer-med him that ,she 
was, also subjected to teleprlone 
har~ssments "not unlike the obsc~ni­
t!es mentioned in the affidavit," w:qich 
she believed were by Febles, and tllat 
the arrestin~ officers, Holmes, was told 
by Febles that "for a long period of 
tim~ he has been a peeper and that 
th! area is his area for peeping." ,:he 
cou t then committed Febles to BeOe­
vue' Hospital for psychiatric obserxa­
tioii. Upon the sentence proceeding, 
thej record reveals that Febles• att<tr-' 
neyj indicated that Febles would apulyl 
fort1further psychiatric treatment aldl. 
su rvision. Upon such consider -• 
tlo s. the court suspended the si J 
month sentence imposed. l f 

Given these new facts, the scope 
of ~he hearing was broadened to ln­
cl~e whether the prosecution had 
".owledge of this incident and the 

accompanying commitment. The dis­
trict attorney was also directed to, 
obtain Febles' complete records from 
Bellevue Hospital. 

At th_e hearing, testimony was taken 
fro.m Febles, his mother, the three 
chief investigating police officers in 
the defendant's case <Lt. Stone, Off. 
Eanast and Off., O'Brien), the arrest­
ing officer in the 1966 disorderly con­
duct., conviction (Sgt. Holmes), the 
com~iainant in that case, the two 
tr!aljdlstrict attorneys (Gino Gallina 
and Stephen Sawyer) and the two 
defetlse lawyers on the third trial 
(Dai;\!el Meyers and Lewis Steel) . 

Febles testifies he told no one, ponce 
officer or district. attorney, about is 
psychiatric history nor the facts of 
the 1966 disorderly conduct arr st. 
[Hq'urs after his testimony, Fe9les 
wa~ arrested by federal and state p.u-

• thofltieo for charges involving the ~ale 
1 of guns. This arrest resulted from a 
i joint investigation by federal authpri­
• tie~ and the Rackets Bureau of lthe 
1 

New York county District Attornl:y•s 
offfce. He has since been indicted on 

, these charmi~. There is no evid~nce I th.ht the homicide bureau knew of J;his 
, lnVestlgatlon when Febles testi~.J 
! Tl\e two district attomeys and the 
f three police officers also testified they 

were not aware of any psychiatric 
J hf.story. As to the 1966 disonjerly 

f

f conduct case, Sgt. Holmes stated il;h .. t 
r ~Ing the early stages of the homicide 

ipvestigation he saw Febles in I the 
station house and told "some' officers.-
present, although he could not ~call 
any specific person he told, tha't he 
had arrested Febles on the disorberly 
conduct charge and it was "logical" 
he also told them about the subsequent 
n.ental commitment in his case. He 
stated that he knew all three officers 
In th" homicide investigation. Lt., 
Stone, who was the commanding offi­
cer of the 6th precinct at the time, 

"6t{lte~ that he knew about Febles 
iY''l!n~ a "peeper' but did not tell 
anyone else. Ptls. O'Brien and Hlnastt 
stateqi they knew about Febles t°'.",-1 
order~ conduct conviction but no thee 
underlying facts. ' 

Telimony was also taken in re,garcrl' 
to F bles' yellow sheet. While I Ftl .. 
Han t stated he thought he Sl\'W a 
yclloi. sheet, he did not personallyl 
obtain it. Ptl. O'Brien and Sgt. Stone 
stated they never got a yellow s}1eet 
e!the'r. The two district attorheys 
testifiec. they had no recollectio~ or!l 
any 'yellow sheet for this witness, but 
Assistant District Attorney Say.ryer 
testified that on the trial he gave' the 
defepse a "piece of paper" contaiµing· 
e.}l \he Information on the yellow sheet 
which was provided him by the bureau 
of ,criminal identification. Defense 
coupsel Meyer testified he examined 

I the, "piece of paper" and foun~ it 

r 

lacking in sufficient information tp be 
of I value. Steele testified he cp,uld 

J notl recollect getting the "paper.'' !Un­
for~unately that "paper" was not preJ 

I I I . ......,,. . ... t 

~--j 

:::::; 

.~--~-c-i 
~ed and is not presently avai~le. • 
At the conclusion of the he ng, f 
the' district attorney produced ,the : 
additional records from Bellevue. I 
Th!' e.._ records showed that sometime ) 
abo t August to September, 1970, ,al- 1 mos at the exact time of the cqm­
mencement of the third trial, Febles I 
wast'again psychiatr!cally evaluated at 1· 

Bell vue. These reports further Jn­
dica e he was receiving in-patient 
treat;ment for one or two months: in 
1968! Further records seem to ( be 
unaviiilable. 

It is conceded by all the parties 

f
lthat,: had the facts of the 1966 dis­
orderly conduct case been known, 
Feble}' entire phychiatrlc history 
would have surfaced and been dis­
cover11d. The direct link to this con­
viction was the yellow sheet. The 
determination of theoo motions, es­
_peclally the aspect of suppression un­
der Brady v. Maryland, supra and the 
aspect of due diligence under newly 
discovered evidence, makes it incum­
bent to examine the circumstances 
that the yellow sheet played in the 
history of this case. 

Prior to and during the course of 
the third trial, defendant sought dls­
convery of Michael Febles' criminal 
record (yellow sheet) orally and by 
way of subpoena duces tecum. The 
District Attorney successfully moved 
to quash the subpoena duces tecnm 
and no yellow sheet was ever provided 

1 defendant. instead, the district at-
• torney indicated he had a communica-
1 tion from the Bureau of Criminal 
Identification as- to the contents of 
the yellow sheet and pro•vided that 
information to defendant (im- ' 
,mediately prior to Michael Febles' 
testb,µony),. informally upon a piece 
f pll;per, which, regretfully, was never 

marked in evidence nor preserved. 
~e . hearing testimony as to the 

yello~ sheet was vague and confus- & 

ing. Although the prosecutorial tea.m 
C'Onceded that obtaining a yellow 
sheti.j; of a witness is standard operat­
ing procedure, it would seem that no 
yellow sheet was actually obtained 
here. (The· Bureau of Criminal Iden­
tiflclttion folder, upon which all re­
quef for criminal records are noted, 
ind ates the first request for a yellow 
she t was in Deccember, 1973, during 
the,course of these proceedings). • 

Apart from any Brady or newly dis'.::' 
cov~red evidence consideration, this 1 
cotttt finds it difficult to conceive' why i 
sucp' a basic and elementary means 
of preparing a witness for trial was 
ispensed with in this case. The pro- 1 
cutor knew that the witness had a 

r~lnal record but he did not obtain 
h_~ _official police or FBI record which 
ight have revealed. for example, 

tHer convictions In this other· juris- • 
l d1ctions. It is difficult to understand 1 

why the district attorney, in such a. 
celebrated and in;iportant murder pro­
secnt!on, would• never obtain the 
criminal records pf a most important ~ 
witness, if only to forestall any sur- • 
prise impeachment on the trial. • i 

The defeno.ant contends (1) that "r ... -- -

I
_F~bles• mental history and the unJ 
cferly!ng facts of his 1966 disorderlt 1 conduct conviction require, in and qr • 
themselves, a new trial pursuant tp , 
Criminal Procedure Law section 440.\0 I 
( g), and/ or (2) that the suppressiqti. 
f this evidence by the prosecutiQn I 

violates co11Stltutional due proce'ss 
der Brady v. Maryland, supra. f 

1 'ljlhe People argue that this evide11:_ce 
hmote, merely relates to the crept- I 

llity of the witness and Is cumli.la~'ive 
f former issues, is immaterial was 

not: suppressed but remained undis- 1 
co;red by reason of the lack of ~ue ! 
dili e1;1ce on the part of the defengant I 
an m any event. is privileged 1and 1 c ot be a basis of the relief sol,)ght. 1 motion for a new trial basal! on I 
neily discovered evidence is a sj;atu- : 
tor remedy and may be grante only 1 \ 
in he sound discretion of the ourt 

le v. Patrick 182 N. Y. 13 ) . 

I. 



section 440.l0(g), substantially Id J:-, I 
cal to former Code of Criminal :e 
j
~1re, se_c::tion 465 <7), provlde{

0
; I 

u gment" ot- ""Conviction iney be va• 
cated where new evidence has·be 
discovered which could not h en 
~~en produced by the defendant a!: ,. 
hie trial even With due diligence on: 

s part, and which Is of such a 
character as to create a probability , 
t~at, had such evidence been recelve4,._ , 

·a trial, the verdict would have beel},.. • 
•more favorable to the defendant I I 

The leading case on the :tsin:ie i· 
newly discovered evidence Peop0 

Salemi, 30~ N. Y. 208. sets the crlteri 
for determming the sufficiency of tr 
new evidence as: , 

l. It must be of such nature ( 
would possibly change the verdl& l 
should a new trial be granted. , 1 

2 • It must have been dis' 0 f!d 
since the previous trial. c ver ! 

3• It must be of such nature th!t 
It could not have been discovered bl!-

dfoilrle the trial by the exercise of dµe 
gence; 

:· It must be material to the issqe· 
th • flt must not be cumulative ilt~ 

e ormer issue• • 
6. It must n~t be impeaching I.or 

contradictory of former evidence 
The federal rule (Rule 38 F • R 

Crim: P.) and cases hold to the s~,I ~ ' 
crit,i1la (United States v. Rutkin fo8 • 
F. ~d 647; United States v. Bertone--• 
249 F. 2d 156; United States v. Robin~ 
son, 329 F. Supp. 723). 
thewmorleerlan aeecv9a 1 

The motion pursua~t to Brad 
prrJents the Issue of the suppression t ~~ 
ev ence favorable to an accused f 

1,hll!l request, where it is mate;l~pot.P 
, gu~ t or punishment, irrespective of th'b 

j 
f Br~d~ :a'i,i~aitlh odf the prosecutioµ 

• . ry an , supra). 
t These motions require us to examine 
lot aspects Of t'he facts: (1) the cprl­

uc of the parties; and (2) t~e 
nature of the evidence New! • 
covered evidence focuses· on th! c~1 -

I 
duc[d 'tf the defendant-whether !:f; 
cou . ave discovered the evidence Q 
due d11Jgence. Brady focuses on t ! 
gonduct of the prosecution. Did th J-j 

y affirmative conduct negligence eyr 

JP.gg;Jsi~~t•~
1
c·t~Tt!~at~i~e~ /~wed gy i 

391 F: 2d 138)' prevent the .dis~g~!t fi. 
j~f d evfidence, Irrespective of gooct "r 

a alth? Ttie rule of new! ct·" 
1f~~~r:g evidence sets the strict ir!tel

1
~; 

l e new evidence must be of 
character as to create the su 
It would have res lted I probab!l! Y 

l
able verdict Thu "dn a more favo -
only in context e tV.1 ence is view d 
previous outcome o of I~hee~~f!1 o~ the 
IS tnot necessarily concerned wlthri(l,y 
ou come but with th f {le 
,f fi!~es~t of th\ con~u~t 0fi~~et~f:f 
of :i{ewly m~l e said t:qat the rule 

15covered evidence pre 
~~~t'::fr nfrfa~p~~fig~t a~ir atnl other: 
·evidence n f rt ' 1e new 
trial need ie c~n!l~~ ~pects of the 
to the essence of the ;roce:~iyw~!)Ch 
produced the result na I Ic 
defendant afforded due me Y, was the 
In the trial of his case¥rocess of law 

While a mo~lon for a new trial based 
ond newly discovered evidence and 
un er Brady v Maryla d 
independent of each ofher sui~!• a~e 
an abvious inter pla f th • re IS 
trines In the facts in3 . e two doc­
of this case. , c1rcumstances 

The issue of remoteness Is removed 
from t'he case because the 1 
continuous histo ong and 
treatment and c1Jmm~{mepstychllatric 
makes Febles' n c early 
relevant on the ~~;a~f ~~£e high~y 
credibility but also his abll!t or1y his 
ciive and remember the fact/to O hp~rh-
he testified. w 1c 

!-8 to the question of suppression 
Michael Febles• arrest for disorderly 
conduct and the homicide occurred i 
in the same police precinct a mere l 
fifteen months apart. The officers in- , 
volved In both cases knew each other ~ 
Sgt. /Holmes testified he remembered 
J:ebjes was "!tiding'.' in the invest!ga. 
tioq an_d imparted ~his_information 

Cb~~hun to certain of!icel'l!~pres~t, 

--. 

r 
f 
I 
I 
I 

r 

t 

i ., 

... 

Lt. Stone, directly or Indirectly, 7'"'i·· aware Febles was a convicted peeping 
torrr. '8fflcers .. Hanast and O'Brien were: 
aware of thti'cl.isorderly cop.duct ar-
Test, and Holmes Initially put the, 
question of Febles' sexual aberratio 
into the mainstrea~ of the investiga-' 
tlon. It Is obvious that, by way of ac-
knowledged procedure of police officers' 
imparting information between them4 
selves, these facts' filered down to thd 
officers irfvestiiatlng the homicide( 
Whether Stone •or any other officer!l 
on the homicide case tntent!onally ol 
:negligently failed to investigate furthell'. 
is of no matter. They were put on, 
fiotice and as fact-finders they could' 
not take a hear-no•ev!l, see~no-evil; 
speak-no-evil attitude toward a poten-
tial and subsequently major witness-
in their case. t ; 

- The fact that the prosecution mayt 
not have been aware of the tnforma•• 

2. 

tton known by the police does ni· r-- •""'n"'1i"'we11 'fecog ze at he pros-
~utral~ the ~.onstltutl?nal aspecli; J ecutlon· has a great advantage over 
of suppression. The, police are a!-51:> -- the defendant in the fact-gathering 
part of t1?,e ~rosecut1on. and the ta1 proce!!S. due w, his .auperior manpowe 
on the tnal IS, no less 1f they, rathe ...., and access to other law enforcement, 
than the states attorn~,Y .. were guilty facilities (see Goldstein, The state 
of the non-disclosure (Barbee v. of The Accused: Balance of Advan-
Warden, 331 F 2d 842, 846). The dis- tage in Criminal Procedure, 69 Yale 
tr!ct attorney has the high duty and L.J. 1149, 1960; Application of Kapa-
heavy responsibility to . prepare and tos, 208 F. 'Supp. 883, 888; Jackson v. 
prese_nt crim\nal cases. That du~y nee- Wainwright. 390 F. 2d ,288, 294). The 
essar1ly entails he be charged with the District Attorney here failed to ut!llze 

I 
knowledge and conduct of his agents his advantage in his behalf and re-
(see; Umted States v. C9nsolidated fused the de'fendant any a-ccess to' 

I 
Laundries Corp., 291 F. 2d 563 [mis• the information at all. The request 
!landl!ng of files by department clerks fo, the yellow sheet was a!ter all 
imputed to prosecutor]; Giglio v. basic and not extraordinary discovery 
United States. 405 U. S. 150 [promise and this court cannot conceive why 
of one district attorney is controlling it should not have been provided. The 
on associate district attorneys]: I defendant's. case was a highly pub-
People v. Churba. N. Y. L, J .. Feb. 19, 

1 
llcized trial based upon a brutal 

1974.~ p. 21 [loss of evidence by In-I murder. It was the third trial of the 
vestlgat~rs Imputed to _prosecution]). : case and at issue were charges of 

Even If we were to give this factor prosecutorial misconduc'\;. The Dis-
of suppression minimal conslderntlon, trict Attorney had an obligation to 
the, fact remains that the defense 1 , the ,court and to the People he repre-

.,.... specifically and continuously called for I sen~ to leave no reasonable avenue 
the, yellow sheet to investi1rnte the I unexplored in the preparation of the 
underlying facts . of, the disorderly! ' ca~e. Given these circumstances, in 
conduct arrest. Th!S ' flagging" of tlle fact of defendant's persistent demand 
importi,mce of the yellow sheet to the and the trial court's order, the ques-
deferu;e "impose [d] upon the prose-' tion of' suppression cannot be per-
cution a duty to make a careful tlreck ... ~ ~ mltted to stand or fall on the un-
of his flies" (U. S. •V. Keough, 3ll F. knowil contents of the "piece, of pa-
2'1 138.• 147). Once the district ittor- per''.. provided In lieu of the yellow 
ney, ~pows of the defendant's interest. sheet. 
if 1le fa!L5 to honor this, even In u;ood I • Therefore by reason of imputation 
faith. be bas only himself to m. ame t from the police officers' and the Dis-
(JJ. S. v. Keough, suura, at p,J 147; 1 trfct ,Attorney's own affirmative con-
U. s. v. Thomas, 411 F. 2d 825, 831). i duct in regard to the yellow sheet, I 
The trial court, too. with almos pro•, conclude there was a suppression of 
phetic Insight, noted that I! th dis- the facts of the 19'66 disorderly con-
orderly conduct resulted from exual duct conviction and the psychiatric 
misco:qduct, he would permit ross- hlgt\)ry of Febles which would have) 
examination under· Peoole v. orge becqme evident. To label such sup.! 
301.N. Y. 198. He soeciflcally o dered pr~ssion intentional or negligent ls un-f 

( it be given to the defendant! Al oui;h ne,,cess~ry. It Is enough that the 
It could have been easily ob ained prosecution was the active and ef-( 
froni the Bureau of Criminal dent!- fective cause of the non-disclosure oft 
flcatlon. a few blocks from the !court- the evidence. If the prosecutor dldi 
house, the district' 0,ttorney onlr pro- not . erect a barrer to the evSdence ! 
v!ded defendant wit,h a "pdece df it certainly enshrouded the informa-, 
paoer" whose content Is cl1spu~d and tion in fog. If such not be a willful 
unknown. suppressil>n, the result was a de facto 

The mystery of the yellow sheet Is suppreSS1on. . 
further complicated by the district-at- , As to the hature of the evidence, 
tbrney's reference to Febles' i:onvic- wei-e the facts of the sexual basis of 
tion of a 1963 disorderly ~onduct the disorderly conduct conviction the 
charge, which he stated arose' out of I only issue here, ·;r might be in-
"causing a disturbance of something clined to agree that such evidence 
of''the sort." Y~t the yellow sheet itself would be merely cumulative qf 
does not indicate tnis arrest resulted the trial attempt to impeach tlie 
in a co11vlction nor anv facts of the witness' and not· sufficiently material 
undely!ng char1re. Febles' yellow under 'Brady of the c1iteria of People 
sl)eet, up until this time, states only y. Salemi_. supra. This would be so 
the following: ' even jf it adva:qced a new theory 

Date ·or Arrest - 8-2·62. Name challenging cred1blllty <People\ v. 
-Michael Febles, 137 W. 93 St. Bor- Mackma?, 15 N. Y. S. 2d 746, 751; but 
ough or City-Manhattan, 3240-24. cf. DaV'ls v. Alaska.-U. ~.-42 LW 
Charge-Gr. Lare. Arresti~1g Qfflce 42~7 f19741 ). But the qumte:1sential 
-O'Shet: 20 s,- • Date, Disp., J'udge, eV'ldence here Is the Jon~-standing a_nd 
Court - Spec. Bess., 8-15-62,: No. on-going mental i:ondit10n of a maJor 
10873. Att. Pet. Laro. 8-24-62, 30 Days eyewitness. In conJunctio • v.ith an ap-
W. H., Judge Ringel. p~rent sexual aberration. This mental 

Date of Arrest-7 ~17-63. Nilme- cond1tion raises the question of the 
Michael Febles. Borough or ~lty- a. ,urnteness; perception, truthfulness 
Manhattan. Charge-722-3 PL.. Ar• f' ,1d susceotll:rillty to suggestion of 
resting Officer-Iannone, 20th I P"t. Febles as a v•itne . His capacity to be 
Dat, Disp., Judge. Court-Crim! ct., a witness may even be,ln question. A 
7-17-63, No. 11910, Ft. 1c. J our Court of ~ppeals reoogruized i 

, Date of Arrest-l-l0-66. Name- (PooPle v. Rensmg, 14 N. Y. 2d 2101· 
Michael Febles. Borough or mty- , 
Manhattan. Charge-Diso. CoQd. Ar- J 
restinv Officer - Holmes, 6th , Pct. J I , 
Date. Disp., ,Judge. Court-l-10-6p, Cr. f I I' 
C.J;,;..Pt. r1E1 Pkt. No.-C322~ ~ 1 -~ l'-;. 

How. then, did the, District Attor- - -·· --- f 
ney know that the 1963 case retlted 
in a conviction unless he had f her _J 

. information? If he ha"d such nfor- I 
ffiil,tion as to the 1963 arrest, would 

,, it not have also been obligatoru for ~.....,,...,.--- --
~him to investigate the facts an4 dis-
position of the 1966 arrest? • 
• Further disturbi.1g Is that t to 

another witness, Dennis Morr! the 
district attorney revealed that a prl.or 
arres~ for possession of marljua.na 
was dismissed because a laboratory 
report Indicated the substance' was 
in: fllct pregano. P'-0w is it the Di.strlct 
Attorney knew the specifics of a. dis, 
missed case of this witness anli yet 

--itad--no.knowledge of the facts under­
lying ~b.lei'"'l•~? Obviously he 
did invea~ t,he· crim!na.i back­
g;:ound of th•t witneel;. This court can 
ortfy wonder why it wu not done, with 

I 



evidence o! IJ!llllljal Uli:111,Ns 111 11. special 
type of evud~e !ill 1libat it i6 a fact 
a jury would;,Jlt entd~. t.o mow tx> 
"assess aJ1d ev.aluate-ihlf'" testimony 
given by him and not acc~p~ it, as th?, 
sta1iemel\t of a •normal mdividual 
(at p. 213-21~). This ls espe~ally so 
w'here a witne55 r.C'ts ,nqrmally 
tm-oughout the trial, and his de­
meanor in the courtroom a.nd on the 
witness stand furnishes no basis for; 
Inferring that there i_s "something! 
mentally wrong" with him (at p. 214) ·• 
There was no indlca,tlon at the trial1 here that Febles haid any psychiatric, 
disorders. His conduct was not extra-, 
o-rd:inary. During summa,tions. the 
district l),ttomey held him out as an 
ordinary witness. Febles himself hid, hi& 
menW history. It ls well r,~cogruzed 
tihat miste.ken identiflc•a~ion probably 
aooounts for more miscarriages of 
jus:Mcoa than any other footoc" (United 
States V. Wade, 388 u. s. 218). Of the 
Clree eyewitness:-~. Febles discr!ption 
of tihe defendant _most. accurately fit 
his actual atklbutes. His testimony 
:remained relatively unimpeached, . 

In Giglio v. United States, suma, 
the supreme Court, quoting Napue v. 
D!lnols (360 U, S. 264) held that when 
the reUa,bi!ity of a given wit_ness may 
well be determinative of gllllt ?r In­
nocence, non-disclosure . of evidence 
effec,t.ing crecMbllity may Justify a n 
trial (at p. 154). In Moore v. Illlno , 
{408 u. s. 786) while the court fo~d 
suppressed prior statements .. of~a 
witness did not "slgnUl~antly 1 -
oll-ach his testimony, It did recog 
that substanttial lmpewh!ng evide . 
,might have that effect. In Levin v. 

tzenbtch (363 F. 2d 287) the ~. 
;i.td t,\i,at where • the suppre ed 

• '.would have tended to 1mpe ch 
ered;lb!llty of a "key" witness, 1the 

on ls whether this weakel)!ng 
mis'ht hpe led the jury to enwtain a 
• 11,18,1:ila doubt" es to guilt r (.a 

i 2) (see also "Withholding o 
• ~on of Evidence by Pro.5f'cu­
iii.;,;-31- ALR 3f 16, section 5 [bl ) . 
la'l Vnited States v. Keough (:lil F. 
·· 134)1 Judge Friendly classifie the 

,w a.& tc; prosecutorial suppress! ,n as 
~ tilto three ba,sic ca,tegorl1!5i: (1) 

~te bad faith suppreS!lion 
~ a low degree of prejudice to, 

M ndant; (2) delioer,ate re~l 
• r a request for evi\ce 
ff Ive of good or bad fait in 
diimg , which requires a find1 ' of 
~ eJud!ce: and (3) where 'P­

was not deliberate ar'-d nq re-
µt!j!t ad•• but where hindsight ld!s,. 

·o~ e "'eviden::e coulct hav,e been 
"J)Ut ,w0, 'not Insignificant" use (which 
requires a substantially hlghe~ p1pba­
bilt!y the evider:ce would have -alfred 
the result) . z j 

While tnis c-ase falls most com cit­
ably into the second ca,tegory, ev n !! 
we were to set th·3 standards of tbe 
third and "no-fault" the suppreSSion, -
I conclude th,at the facts of the I dis, 
orderly conduct conviction In conjunc­
tion with Febles pSychiatric hl~1·y 
bear much more than only on . the 
rellabllity of his specific testimon ,1 but 
also upon his trustworthiness as a 
witness per se (Simo-s v. Gray, 2! F. 
Supp. 265, 270). 

G1ven the !mperfectton of the her 
witnesses' testimony and , per nal 
characters, Febles mus~ have _play Cl a 
crucial rolz in the jury s verdict. hus 
eVlldence of his aberrant mental on-

'tion i,s highly material on the e8-
tlon of the defendant's guilt, With.out 
this -eVlldence, the jury did not l:19.ve 
all the facts befOd'e -them and were 
effec-tll.vely misled in evaluating ;his 
testimony (see Juvller, P3ychlirlc 
Opinions as to Credilbillty of• Wltne es 
• A suggested Approach, Calif. L. ev., 
vol 48, October 1960, No. 4 pp. 648- 6). 
'under the cl~cumstanceJ, the evid ;CC 

of his mental history could have n 
put not only to "not insignifl IWlt 
use" (U. s. v. Keough, supra, p. 47). 
but to most significant use. , 

I 
FurlhermoTe had the jury k 

that this major witness had a hi 
of mental problems requiring hos 
izatlon both at the time of the 
and the trial, together with a 
i:onduct evi'dencang . sexual degen ~ . 
and perversion, It would have . _ 
h tvily ,upon their considera~im <jC.Jw; ! 
teetimon:,c, 'IWil;ll ar .«rong 
_a-~ wit • 's test/! 

.S 

ue~dilligfilice. I this iaaue iu somewha.t overshadowed 
by the hi!!'hlY an•tiall'OTld8tlo atmosphere ~ 
crlla.ted ,.by_~ ~eoti~ counsel in , 
this case. wl;l!ch at7:dm.es caused each • 
,to cfiminish their professional respon- ; 
~sibi!it!es in favor of overt hostility 
on a personal level. This unprofes- \ 

:SionaJ conduct must be attributed to 
both sides. However, considering the 

I fact thwt the defense counsel w1s 
moved to trial almost immediately 
upon being retained, his look of 
experience, the extenslye preparation 
and the investigation irlvolved., I can-
no-t conclude that the failure to dis- , 
cover the new evidence heTe was a : 
result o-f a •"slovenly preparation for 
trial" (Levin v. Katzenback, 363 F. 2d 
287, 297, dissent!;ng opiruon). I have 
no quarrel with the trial court or the 
district attorney -in pressing for trial. 

Indeed, the constant spectacle of 
attempts to frustrate the trial deter­
minations of cases by stalling, block­
lpg, delaying tactics, changing of 
qounsel, frivolous motions and the like 
is a major blight on our criminal jus­
tice system. But where a case sucl;I 

:as this is moved fo:r trial •with new 
'counsel, who hais a short time tb pre­
pare properly, it is incumbent upon a 
prosecutor to make certain that the 
defendant is provided with all d!s­
cove~ materials to \vhich he ls en­
titled ! at the earliest possible stage, 
rath~tha'.n withholding and impeding 
aeee to such information until the 
last sible moment. 

Here, the district attorney's paro­
chial• insistence on moving to quash 
the subpoena for the yellow sheet re­
sulte<). at best in the disclosure of con­
tested· information just prior to cross­
examination of a key witness with the 
unfortunate result that vital evide~ce. 
was -not heard or evaluated by ttial 
jury': ' 

Tl.)e remaining issue is the quest)on 
of ihe privileged nature of FebJes' 
med c&.l records. _ 

A common law, there was no i'ule 
pro . !biting the disclosure of c4m­
mupicatfons between physician ~nd 
patjent (Edington v. Aetna Life :µis. 
oo.f 77 N. Y. 564). The privileg~ 1s 
purely a:· creature of statute (CFLR 
sec. '4504, mll.de applicable to crimial 
actions by CPL sec. 6{) .10). The -
p06ej of the rule is to protect those ho 
!\re ,required to consult physicijtns 
tro~ the dlsclbsure of secrets im­
part d'to them, to protect the relatl,Pn-1 
ship of patient and physician and to 
prev nt physicians from 'disclosinglin­
form,ation which might result in. 
humiliation, embarrassment or dis..l 
grace to patients (People v. Al-Kanan!, 
33 N. y. 2d 260). But the statutory I 
rule of privilege is not so rigid that it 
will ,prevent disclosure at any stage 
of a court ·proceediµg nor regardless o! 
the issues litigated. In People v. 
Fartholomew (73 Misc. ~d 541), while 
upholding the privilege therein, the 
coun) also recognized that the exa;n­
lnation • of the merits of the Issues, 
"paJ1ic1ilarly upon a post trial motion 
to set aside a •jury verdict" (at p. 
543) ~ may require the "•laying aside 
the issue of the pr!v!leged nature of 
th~ reports" (at 544).. In People v. 
Dod! (74 Misc. 2d SQ), the court, in 
den 1g, discovery of medical reports 
beea se of the privilege, noted "it is 
1gn19cant that thi,s is a pretrial mo­

tkm" and the records were not, sought 
ri :,Connection with the issue of guilt 

or Innocence but merely on the col­
lateral issue of credibility of a witness. 
We aq, _of course, concerned here with 
post-c~vict!on motions In a case 
w:n.ere. the question of :privilege was 
never before an issue. Since the 
P.i'ttdi ,aspect of the motion involves; 
llOl!Sjj,tutional con.sideratlons, the, 

l 
1 

i i 
~ 

ijtate's police Interest in protecting 
he confidentiality of the physician­
atient relationship must· give way=toc 

the determination of the constitu-
t!pnal question (cf. Davis v. Alaska 
- ·U. S. - 42 LW 4295 [Feb. 27, 

• 197 4]) , where the Supreme Court held 
I that a state's policy interest in pro­
tecting_ ·the confidentiality of a wit-
ness's juvenile record-must yield to 
an accused's constitutional right to 
effectively cross-examine an adverse 
witness for bias under the confronta­
tion clause of ,the Sixth Amendment. 
The court suggested that 1f a state ~ 
deems the confidentiality of records so I 
paramount, it :should refrain from 
using that witness to make out its } 
case. "• •· • the state cannot, con­
sistent with [the1 right of confl'onta­
tion, require the petitioner to bear the 
run burden of vindicating the' St.ate's 
interest in the secrecy of • * • rec­
ords" (2 LW 429>9). Minimally, then, 
there ls no pri vllege as to the court 
and since priv!lege must be ultimately 

'decided by the court in any clrcum­
, tance, I find, that, given the t;ulJ;UJe 

f the l}e.wly discovered ev1denlle . a-1-
ects of this motion, the _ need ~­
rltilege the medical records doe., • 
uiass the .fruc!al -need for thet,Jr $9-
1 ure 1n determining the me~ • of 

th relief sought (see People v. ?ru­
to 13 Misc. 2d 802, aff'd. sub'. nem. 
Sllyer v. Sobel, 7 A, I'. 2a 7t.B; , 
Mitp.no v. State, 44 Misc. 2d ~90; J\m.• 
ier,. phych!atrlc opinions as ·to lcrti:U­
b!lily of \\1itnesses, supra pp. 66tStif). 
[HOweve;, the court. w!ll wl_v,u~ 
tu~• !ng over these records to tt df~ 
fe e and, instead, will seal the ~ 
ma k them into evidence as a ~urt; 
exhibit In the everlt of appellat,e r1t­
-v!ejv.] i . 

'?he court recognizes that a: jµ.tT 
.verdict is not to be set a.side bht 'for 
the' most compell!ng reasons. A jury 
verdict ls the most desired, If not per­
fe~t, resolution of a case in our crim­
inal justice system.· But that verdict 
.to have an:v•men.n!ng must be the re-
• sult of a careful consideration of all 
the material facts. For the district 
attorney to' argue that, in a close case 
such as this, the long, continuous and 

I possibly organic mental condition of a 
major witness, manifesting Itself on 

fat least one occasion In sexually aber­
f rant behavior, ls not of such suffi­
, c!ency as to be required to be con­
s' dered by the Jury, Is not reasonable, 
:and_ reason ls the foundation of justice. 

The motions for a new trial pur­
£uant to Crlmfnal Procedure Law, 
se¢tlon 440 .10 (g) and 440. HJ (h) are 
• raltted,, .,_ 

This dec!filon -.shall constitute the 
rder of tlle court, • .... --. _ ~ 

3. 
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SUPREME COURT 

TRIAL TERM 

NEW YQRK coµNTY 

PART 

THE PEOPLE OF T~E STATE OF ~EW YORK 
I 
!! -against- 1 

Indictment No, 
3937/67 

I 
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II 
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!1 ,, 

WILLIAM MAYNARD, s 

·Defendant. s 

-~-------------~~---~--------------~-x, 
Appearances, 

Franks. Hogan, Esq. 
District Attorney of Nevr York County 
155 Leonard Street 
New York, N. Y. 1001J. 
By1 Juris Cederbaurns, Esq._ 

Assistant District Attorney 
of Counsel 
For the People 

Lewis Steel, Esq. 
351 Broadway 
New York, N. Y. 1001) 

For the Defendant 

Lang, J.1 

During the early morning of April), 1968, Marine 
I 

Sergeant Michael Kroll was shot and killed on West 4th Street in 

the Greenwich Village area of New York City. Some six months 

later, the defendant, William Maynard, was indicted for that 

homicide, 

The fir.st trial in this case was held in 1969 and.re­

sulted in a hun~ jury. The second trial resulted in a mistrial. 

The third trial resulted in defendant's conviction of Manslaughter; 

in the First Degreo. On February 4, 1971, the defendant was 

sentenced to a priso~ term of not iess than 10 nor more than 20 
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The conviction was subsequently affirmed in the Appell~te 

by a divided court J-2 (People v. ~ynard, 40 AD 2d 

At the trial, the 'People produced .four witnesses pla.cfng 

the defendant at the scene. Rober't Crist, who was :with Kroll at 
! 

the time of the snooting, D~nnis Morris, and Melvin Febles, each 

of whom identified the defendant as the person who ·shot Kroll. 

All testified that- afte:r the shooting they saw Maynard and hi'~ 

companion run west on West 4th Street to 6th Avenue and then north 

on 6th Avenue. A cab driver, Howard Fox, testi£ied that oarlier 

that evening, he drove Maynard and a companion to the Greenwich 
. 

Village area. The defendant testified in his O'tJll behalf that he 

was not in the area but was wit!, hi,s family in Queens. Members 

of his family corroborat~d·his aLi.bi. 

In the present motions, defendant seeks the following 

reliefs 

(1) to set aside the conviction, pursuant to CPL 

§ 44-0.10, on the grounds of newly-discovered evidence ba:sed on 

affidavits by Paul Dietz, Edw~rd Murphy and William Purcella 

(2) to set aside the conviction and/or sentence, pursuant 

to CPL§§ 440.lQ and 440.20, on the grounds of improper conduct 

; \'( 
l 
I 
I 
I 
l 
I I , 
' i 

I 
I 

l 

I 
I 

I· by the District Attorn~y a~d ~he trial courts 

(3) an order permitting the defendant to be given a lie 

detector test, and 

I 
l 
q 
I 
I 
I 

!I 

I 
(4) an order permit~ing broad discovery of various police; 

department and prosecutor's r~ports concerning investigations ·in 

this case. 

These mot ions wer,e originally returnable before anot.her 

judge of this court who set the.matter down for a hearing befqre 
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another' judge, not the trial judge. The Administrative Judge of 

this court referred these motions to me. At the onset, it ls my 

opinion that the better practice with respect to motions-to set 

aside a judgment of conviction based on newly-discovered evidence 

is that they be made before th~ judge who conducted the trial. 

This is apparent b~cause the juoge who has heard the case is in 

the best position to determine whether in fact the ne~ evidence • I 
I 
1
1 may have affected the jury·• s verdict. 

I 
I 

I 
I 
i 
I 

,I 
I 

i 
I 
I 
I ., 

The power to grant an order for a new trial on the 

grounds of newly-discovered evidence is purely statutory and such 
! 

power may only be exercised when the requirements of' the statute 
I 

have been satisfiea, the determination of which res.ts in the 

sound discretion of th~ court (People v. Salemi, 309 N.Y. 208, 

215). 

CPL § 440.lO(g) provides that a. ju,_pgment of conviction 

may be set asiqe on grounds that new evidenc;:e has been dis·covered 

which could not b'e produ,ced by the defendant at the ~rial even 

with due diligence on his part and which is of such character as 

to create a proba~ility that had such evidence been _received at 

the trial the verdict wo~ld have been morQ favo~able to the de­

fendant. 

Prior to the enac-tment of CPL ~ 440.10, c9P § 465(7) 

provided for a new trial basecr on newly-discovered evidence if 
, . .. 

such evidence was not cumulative and would probably have changed 

the verdict. 

1 

I find there is no distinction between these -two statutes • 

and the criteria for determining the sufficiency of the new 

evidence remains the same. 
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The case law interpreting these statutes makes it clear 

that not every type of new evidence will be grou~ds-for setting 

aside the conviction. Besides meeting the requirements of the 

statute, the new evidence must also be material to the issues at 

trial~ it must be more tha~ merely cumulative and it must not be 
I • 

:w 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
i 
I 

merely of an impeaching or contradictory.nature (Pe9pie v. Salemi, 

supra, Peopre v. Priori, 16~ N.Y. 459). 

For purposes of the~e motions, it is deemed that the 

evidence was not discoverable at the time of the trial and that 

th.e motions are timely made. 

(1) The Dietz. Motion 

Ih respect to the Pietz affidavit, having .examined it 

and the memor.anda provided by the prosecution and the defe~se, 

I find no need for a testimonial hearing. Basically, the affi-
' .. 

davit states that.Dietz .heard the shooting and saw.two men run 

toward 6th Avenue. He was also present when Robert Crist was 

interviewed by the police Officer and described Crist as being 

"drunk.• At the trial the testimony indicated Cri~t was "intoxi-

catea.• The gist of the motion is that there is a'difference 
j 
I 

I I 
I 

between being ~drunk" and being "intoxicated" and this 

requires a new trial. 

difference ! 

I disagree; The fact that• Crist was in an intoxicated 

state was not disputed at the trial, His· condition was fully 

explored, s 

by counsel in summation, and alluded to by" the dissenters in th 
. 

App~~late Division. The weight and credibility to be given his 

testimony was determined by the jury. Thus the most that can be 
D 

said:ot this •new evidence• is that it is cumulative and designed 
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merely to impe~ch the credibility o~ Crist as a witness. It\ 

throws no new light on the iss~es and tha motion must be denied 

(People v. Salemi, supraa People v. Patrick, 182 N.Y. lJla 

.People v. Williams, 35 A D 2d 102J). 

(2) The MurEhY Motion* 
I 

As to the ,Murphy affidavit, a testimonial _hearing was 

l \' 

ordered, but~Mr. Murphy never appeared. While defense counsel 11 

I 
intimates possible intimidation of Murphy by the Police Department~ 

~here is no evidence of this. It should also be noted that de­

fendant's counsel never asked the court f.or a subpoena or body 

attachment to produce his witness. 

Assuming Mur~hy would have testified to the contents 

of his affidavit, that although he did not see the person who 

shot troll, he did see a man, who was not Maynard, run east on 

West 4+.h Street after the shooting. 
iv • 

~en if such testimony were 

true, ·the overwhelming evidence, including statements in the 
. . 

Dietz affidavit, is that the killer ran west on West 4th Street. 
J 

j 

Since Murphy makes no claim iehat the person he saw wa-s the kill~r, 
! 

\ 
his testimony cannot be said to be such 'new evidence' that wo~ld 

require a new trial. 

In People v. Priori ( lq4 N. Y.. 459·), a case not dissimilar, 

to the present one (the area of the 'homicides are even the same), 

the newly-discovered evidence was contained in an affidavit by a 

witness who stated he h~ard a shot and saw ·a man run from the 
< 

scene. He also said he saw the defendant, known to him, at the 

scene but defendant did ,not do th~ shooting. 

The court held that assuming the evidence was recently 

i discovered, material to the issue, not cumulative or of an ~m-
11 
11 ,, 
Ii 
' I 
I 
I 
I 
i ', Ii 
!i 
ii q I, 
" 

peaching nature, it was not such as required the aourt to hold it 
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:I 

would probably have· changed the result if a new trial. was granted. 1 

I reach the same conclusion in r~gard ~o the purported Murphy 

affidavit. 

(J) The Purcell Motion 

While I am not either condemn.ing or sanctionin~ any con-

duct of the Police·Department or the prosecut'ion rela~ing to ! 
• • • . I 

• • I 
Purcell, in \ight of the other evidence examined, including e.ffi.- 1 I 

davits by the Distric·t Attorney, defendant and Purcell's own i 
I 

letters, I find that the Purcell affidavit is presumptively and l 
I 

demonstratively perjurious and. unworthy• of any credence whatever. j 

Defendant argues that in orger to create evidence in ,i 

the case, the police officers attempted to create in Purcell a 

witness· who would testify _that Maynard confessed the murder to 

Purcell. That· this being so, the entire proseouti~rt case is so 

tainted that a new trial must be ordered. 

J 

t· 

Purcell, in his affidavit, states that sometime in June- ·1 

of 1970, he was removed from his jail cell, where h~ was awaiting 
I 

trial on an unrelated homicide charge. and placa:iin ,Civil Jail, 

f'orce fed heavy doses of tranquiiizing and narcotic drugs and 

intimidated and rehearsed into b~ing a witness agai~st defendant. 

But ~he overwhe1ming evidence shows that some five months prior 

to this allege·a. plot, Purcell wrote a letter, dated 2/2/70,. to 

the District Attorney, stating Maynard confessed the. crime to him 
. . 

while they were in the Tombs' together and that he wanted to prove 

his rehabilitation ,PY offering to· testify against him~ Purcell, 

also known as James S?llivan, was at the time awa1ting trial on a 

felony murde.t charge upon which he was found incompetent to stand 

trial and had spent more than 10 years at Matteawan State Hospital:. 
I 

I 
I 

. ' • 

I 
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This letter was unsolicited. In a s·eries of following letters 

Purcell told of his befriending Maynarq, gaining his confidence 

I. and gave de.tails about Maynard and the ·killing as allegedly re­

l~ted to'hitn by defendant. Following up on this, the District 

, Attorney, ·at Purce_ll' s lns.1~stence that his life was in danger in 
~ . . 

prison, had 1him :committed t~ civ;~l jail:, -where he was prescribed 

certain drug~t~erapy by the prison doctor, now deceased. P\rcell,. 

after recantations and re-recantations, was never ca.lled to 
A • 

testify. 

It is upon ·the affidavit of such a man that defendant 

bases his motion. ~ile defense Qounsel, just as the District 
·11 Ii Attorney, had a duty to inve~tigate "any of Purcell's I claims, it 
1 taxes this court's senses why defendant sudd~nly puts him fqrth 

as a person~deijerved to be believed. Defense counsel ~ttacks 

Purcell's letters as "wo~thless", "containing obvious misstate-

I· 
I 
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ments", "s9unds completely ma'de up" and yet asks us to review tho '• 

affidavit .. as- E,l, statement of an honorable· and truthful man. The 

court agrees that the Purcell letters must be considered products 

of~ practiced prevaricator. And we look upon the affidavit with 

the same eyes •. ·~ 
Defense. counsel, an able and exceptionally committed 

attorn~), WQ~ld have this court be~ieve that this case has a 

spir,itual simiiarity to the Qreyfus affair. Yet I cannot view 

Henry Purcell.as a ~resent' day M. Picquart. Purcell'' s chameleon 
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like c_para·cter is evidenced by his claii:n tp.a t after h~ was gi V?n ' 

a su~pended sentence and z.,eleased in his own case, he .attempte.d, I 
1

1 

on numerous occasions, to notify law enforcement officials of the ·l 
• ,, 

J. tabrication pl9t l>ut that· he. was constantly thwarted· and as a 
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result was rearrested on trumped up ~harges and returned to 

prison. But the .only documentary evidence of Purcell's activity 

- -when µe was free (and presumably not under the influence of _any 

drugs) is a let.tar he wro·te to the District Attorney indicating 

how he was "sick to [his] stomach" that the press, especially 

James _Wechsler of the 'New Yo.rk Post, has been deceiv~d by Maynard i' 

l' '-
and that he would let Mr. Wechsler kno~ the truth about the 

confession. 

The fact of the matter still remains that Purcell was 

never called as a witness. the jury was never aware of his ex- , . I 
istence, and defendant was convicted on the evidence-at the trial.! 

In light of these facts, I find the affidavit of Henry 

Pu·rcell, to -be unworthy of belief and that it does not require a 

hearing. The motion "is denied. 

(4) Lie De.:t.ector Test 

While I would have signed an order permitting defendant 

to take sue~ test during the pendency of the trial, for the 

reason that if he were at liberty he could take such test by 

choice regardless of i~s admissibility and an incarcerated person 1 

should not be deprived of such right merely beeau~e _of his incar­

ceration, the present law in this state is that evidence o! the 

results of a lie detector test is inadmissible at trial (People v.! 

Leone, 25 NY 2d. 511). 
• ! 

Since the results of such test would not be relevant upo~ 
I 

any of the present motions, the motion is· den~ed. But, in the 

interests of justice if the results of all appellate review is 

adverse to the defendant, I will si'gn an order ~llowing him to 

take _such test for purposes .of a petition for Executive clemency, 
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if defendant proceeds to do so, since the Executive is not bound 

by the rules of evidence . . 
(5) ~he "ex parte" Disclosure Motions 

Although not used as a witness, Henry Purcell was al­

lowed. to plead guilty to a lesser charge of manslaugnter in his 

own case. At the time of sentencing, before the same judge who 

presided over the Maynard case-, the District Attorney pointed out 

that Purcell had cooperated with the District Attorney although 

Maynard was not specifically mentioned. The record indicates the 

judge· was aware- the reference was to. the Maynard case. Purcell 

subsequently received a suspended sentence. 

Defendant argues that· such ex parte communication by 
·' 

the District ~ttorney and to the Maynard trial judge, while that 

judge was considering pending pretrial motions and septence, and 

without Maynard•s presence, violated defendant's rights to due 

process of law. 

I disagree. I know ~f no case that requires a defendant 
•' .. 

to be present at any sentencing but his own. 

~ownsend v. Burke, )34 U.S. 736, cited by the defendant, 

is not in point. In Townsend, the court held that before a.!!_!- I 
fendant ~s sentenced he is entitled to the presence of counsel to I 

ensure that the conviction and sentence are not ba~ed on misi~for- ! 
mation or misr~ading of the court records (See Mempa v. Rhay, 

389 u.s. 128). Defendant's absence at the sentence of Purcell did 

not violate his rights even if that proceeding were related to his 

case. 

Defendant's other contention and the basis of his motion 

is that Purceli''•s sentencing• should not ha'le, been ref~rred to the 
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I' ,! I Maynard trial judge and by doing so, Maynard's rights were 

I violated. 

t · Specifically' defenqar;it claims. that --during Purcell's _ 1 

sentence p~oceeding, certain disclosures were made which ~ortrayetl! 

Maynard in a most violent ;ight an? which necessarily prejudiced 
I i the trial jpdge· in determining the 

I . which were then being considered. 
I fe • 

Maynard motions and sentence 

\ 
I Whili the better practice might have been to have the 
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District Attorney place Purcell's sentencing before another . . judge ,l 

f 
I 

I it would be highly speculative for this court to determipe whethe~ 
I 
I or not any statements relating to Purcell and Maynard had any 

influence on the trial judge. This· is especially sol· considering 

i 
I 

I 
i 
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the violept nature of the crime defendant was convic·ted of by the i 1 

jury. The motion to set aside th~ conviction and/or sentence is J 

!. 

thus denied.with.out prejudice to penew same before the trial judge
1
• 

(6) The Discovery; ~otion · lr 
r Defendant. seeks broad discovery and inspection of police;/ 

I investigative reports called DDS's in this case. I recognize 

that such reports may _,c,ontain all sorts ~f raw material,. hearsay, 

investigative leads, false confessions and irr~levant matters 
¥, 

y,hich are generally exempt property,· and the District Attorney 
I , 
! vigoro~._;ly opposes thei~ inspection. However, ·because of the 
I 
I 

11 

II 

various allegations and circ~mstances of this case, to assure-

that there was no deliberate concealment of evidence;and in view. 

of the sharp dissent in the Appellate Division, the motion is 

granted. The District Attorney is directed to turn ~ver copies 

of such reports within 7 da_ys. 

This decision constitutes the order ot the court. 
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Murphy' 
I 

* Subsequont·to the present motions, with-respect to the 
affidavit, defense counsel submitted an· affidavit from one 
Nicnolas De Martino which was in some respects corroborative of I, the Murphy affidavit. and, i'n some respects contradictory to it. 
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_ -fn any event, this ne~ affida~it would not change the decision 
upon the motion. 

- Counsel also submitted an anonymous letter written to 
M~. James Wechsler of the New York Post relating to this case. 
While this letter is clearly hearsay upon hegrsay and cannot be 
considered evidence, the District Attorney was instructed to 
che.ck his files in regard to the letter and make any appropriate 
investigation. .. • ' 

' Dated, June • 1973. 
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